

SOUTHERN TERRITORY BY-LAWS**ALPHABETICAL INDEX**

SUBJECT	ARTICLE	PAGE
Amendments	5.01	3
Elections	3.01-A	2
Executive Board	4.01	3
Members	1.01- 1.02	2
Tournaments	6	3- 4
Tournament Rotation Charts	6.02	4
Vice Presidents	3.01	2- 3
Voting	2.01- 2.02	2

SOUTHERN TERRITORY
By-LAWS

(Revised 11-10-09)

ARTICLE 1: TERRITORY MEMBERS

- 1.01 The fifteen regions listed in **Article 202** of the ASA Code shall be organized into four territories as follows:
 - A. Eastern (inclusive of Regions: 1, 2, 3 and 9)
 - B. Northern (inclusive of Regions: 8, 10, 11 and 12)
 - C. Southern (inclusive of Regions: 4, 5, 6 and 7)
 - D. Western (inclusive of Regions: 13, 14 and 15)
- 1.02 The Southern Territory association members are:
 - A. Region 4: Tennessee, North Carolina, South Carolina and Georgia.
 - B. Region 5: Alabama and Florida.
 - C. Region 6: Oklahoma, Arkansas, Louisiana, Mississippi and Metro Memphis.
 - D. Region 7: Texas, Metro Dallas, Metro Forth Worth, Metro Houston and Metro San Antonio.

ARTICLE 2: VOTING

- 2.01 On all matters coming before the Territory, each Territorial Council member shall be entitled to one vote.
- 2.02 A quorum shall consist of at least fifty percent (50%) plus one of the Territory Council members.

ARTICLE 3: TERRITORIAL VICE PRESIDENTS

- 3.01 A. Elections: Two Territorial Vice Presidents shall be elected in each territory. The two Territorial Vice Presidents cannot be from the same region. The Territorial Vice Presidents shall come from the Council members of their respective territory and shall be elected by a majority vote of these same Council members. One (1) in each territory will be elected each year. This election will take place at the Annual Council meeting.
- B. Term of Office: Territorial Vice Presidents shall serve a term of two (2) years that shall begin at the conclusion of the Council meeting.
- C. Removal: A Territorial Vice President may be removed for just cause by a two-thirds vote of the ASA Board of Directors.
- D. Vacancy: If a Territorial Vice President resigns, dies, retires or is otherwise unable to continue, then the vacancy will be filled by a vote of the National Council members of their respective territory or by the ASA Board of Directors until the next Territory election.
- E. Duties: A Territorial Vice President shall represent their territory on the ASA Board of Directors and shall co-chair at their respective territorial meetings.
- F. Council Status: The Territorial Vice Presidents must have and maintain Council status.
- G. Correspondence Duties: The Territorial Vice Presidents shall put out a periodic information letter or correspondence to all Territorial Council members.
- H. The Territorial Vice Presidents will be the interpreter of the Southern Territory By-Laws.

- I. The Territorial Vice Presidents will email or mail out to all Territorial Council members the minutes of the annual meeting within 60 days after said meeting.
- J. The Territorial Vice Presidents will appoint a Southern Territorial Secretary for a one (1) year term beginning in November 2009.
 - 1. The Southern Territorial Secretary responsibilities shall include keeping the meeting minutes of the Southern Territory and other responsibilities as prescribed by the Territorial Vice Presidents.

ARTICLE 4: TERRITORIAL EXECUTIVE BOARD

- 4.01 A. The Territorial Executive Board shall consist of the 2 Territorial Vice Presidents, the 4 Regional Directors from Region 4, 5, 6 and 7 and any Territory member that is on the ASA National Board of Directors.
- B. The Executive Board shall conduct the business of the Territory including but not limited to the following:
 - 1. Arrange the meeting place and agenda for all Territory meetings.
 - 2. Maintain information on tournaments and awarding of tournaments.
 - 3. Maintain the minutes of all meetings.
 - 4. Conduct all elections for Territorial offices.

ARTICLE 5: ADMENDMENTS

- 5.01 The By-Laws may be amended under the authority of Robert’s Rules of Order by a motion, second and majority of the voting delegates within the Territory only at a posted meeting of the Territory at the annual National Council meeting.

ARTICLE 6: SOUTHERN TERRITORY TOURNAMENTS

- 6.01 A. All Southern Territory Tournaments will be awarded on a rotation basis.
- B. The host sites for each rotation tournament will be awarded by the Region in which the tournament site is located.
- C. Each Region will determine the manner in which a tournament site is selected.
- D. The Territorial Vice Presidents should provide the host site information to the ASA National office staff as soon as the sites are selected.

6.02 Southern Territory Tournament Rotation

Passed on 11-06-2011 in Myrtle Beach, S.C.

Tournament	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017
18U-Gold Qualifier	Region 5- W Palm Beach, FL June 8 -10	Region 4- Spartanburg, SC	Region 4	Region 7	Region 6	Region 5
18U-Gold Qualifier	Region 7- Dallas, TX June 15-17	Region 6- Brkn Arrow, OK	Region 5	Region 4	Region 5	Region 4
18U-Gold So National	Region 6- Ridgeland, MS Aug 1-5	Region 6- Tupelo, MS	Region 7	Region 6	Region 7	Region 6
18U-A	Region 6- Ridgeland, MS Aug 1-5	Region 5- Tallahassee, FL	Region 6	Region 5	Region 4	Region 7
16U-A	Region 7- Fort Worth, TX Aug 1-5	Region 6- Lawton, OK	Region 6	Region 5	Region 4	Region 7
14U-A	Region 4- Columbus, GA Aug 1-5	Region 7- College St, TX	Region 4	Region 6	Region 7	Region 5
12U-A	Region 5- Tallahassee, FL Aug 1-5	Region 4- Columbus, GA	Region 7	Region 4	Region 5	Region 6
10U-A	Region 6- Ridgeland, MS Aug 1-5	Region 5- Tallahassee, FL	Region 5	Region 7	Region 6	Region 4
18U-B	Region 7- Fort Worth, TX Aug 1-5	Region 6- Tupelo, MS	Region 4	Region 6	Region 7	Region 5
16U-B	Region 4- LaGrange, GA Aug 1-5	Region 7- Ft Worth, TX	Region 6	Region 4	Region 5	Region 7
14U-B	Region 5- Tallahassee, FL Aug 1-5	Region 4- Johnson City, TN	Region 7	Region 5	Region 4	Region 6
12U-B	Region 6- Lawton, OK Aug 1-5	Region 5- Gadsden, AL	Region 5	Region 7	Region 6	Region 4
10U-B	Region 7- Dallas, TX Aug 1-5	Region 6- Tupelo, MS	Region 5	Region 7	Region 6	Region 4
Men's "C" SP	Region 4- Spartanburg, SC Aug 30-Sept 2	Region 7- Ft Worth, TX	Region 6	Region 5	Region 4	Region 7
Men's "D" SP	Region 5- Montgomery, AL Aug 30-Sept 2	Region 4- Cummings, GA	Region 7	Region 6	Region 5	Region 4
Men's "E" SP	Region 6- Tupelo, MS Aug 30-Sept 2	Region 5- Tallahassee, FL	Region 4	Region 7	Region 6	Region 5
Women's "C/D"	Region 6- Tupelo, MS Aug 30-Sept 2	Region 6- Clinton, MS	Region 5	Region 4	Region 7	Region 6
Co-Ed "C/D"	Region 5- Tallahassee, FL Aug 24-26	Region 5- FL	Region 5	Region 4	Region 7	Region 6